
BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF UTAH

In the Matter of the Formal
Complaint of James and Dawn
Martell; Robert Kimball;
Frank and Pat Cumberland;
Larry and Sharon Zini; David
and Marsha Smith, et al, vs.
Mountain Sewer Corporation.

Docket No. 11-097-01
In the Matter of Ronald J.
Catanzaro's Notice of Intent
to Sell Mountain Sewer
Corporation and Lakeview
Water Corporation.

Docket No. 11-097-02
In the Matter of the
Application of Mountain Sewer
Corporation for a General
Rate.

Docket No. 11-097-03

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

HEARING

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
TAKEN AT:                               Heber M. Wells Building
                                                                160 East 300 South
                                               Salt Lake City, Utah

DATE:                                     Tuesday, October 16, 2012

TIME:                                       9:00 a.m.

REPORTED BY:                         Michelle Mallonee, RPR



                                                                      Hearing   10/16/12 2

1 APPEARANCES

2 .

3 DAVID CLARK

4 Hearing Off icer

5 .

6 For Mountain Sewer Corporation:

7 J. CRAIG SMITH, ESQ.

8 RICHARD K. RATHBUN, ESQ.

9 SMITH HARTVIGSEN, PLLC

10 Walker Center

11 175 South Main Street

12 Suite 300

13 Salt Lake City, Utah 84111

14 .

15 MELVEN E. SMITH, ESQ.

16 SMITH KNOWLES, P.C.

17 4723 Harrison Boulevard

18 Suite 200

19 Ogden, Utah 84403

20 .

21 For the Division:

22 PATRICIA E. SCHMID, ESQ.

23 UTAH ATTORNEY GENERAL'S OFFICE

24 160 East 300 South, Fif th Floor

25 Salt Lake City, Utah 84111



                                                                      Hearing   10/16/12 3

1 For Celt ic Bank:

2 LESLIE RINALDI, ESQ.

3 CELTIC BANK CORPORATE COUNSEL

4 268 South State Street

5 Suite 300

6 Salt Lake City, Utah 84111

7 .

8 .

9 .

10 .

11 .

12 .

13 .

14 .

15 .

16 .

17 .

18 .

19 .

20 .

21 .

22 .

23 .

24 .

25 .



                                                                      Hearing   10/16/12 4

1                                INDEX

2 WITNESS                                                PAGE

3 RAY BOWDEN

4 Direct Examination by Mr. Craig Smith           6

5 MITCH WINEGAR

6 Direct Examination by Mr. Craig Smith        18

7 MARK LONG

8 Direct Examination by Ms. Schmid              37

9 .

10                              EXHIBITS

11 EXHIBIT NO.                ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE

12 1    Direct Testimony of  Ray Bowden on       18

13       Behalf  of  Mountain Sewer Corporat ion

14 1-A Updated Check Index W ith Invoices       12

15 1-B Bank Statements and Check Copies for   12

16       the Year 2011

17 1-C Bank Statements and Check Copies for   13

18       the Year 2012

19 1-D Copies of  2012 Checks 1101-1107         13

20 1-E Invoices 000001-000061                      13

21 1-F Invoices 000062-000119                      14

22 1-G Invoices 000120-000180                      14

23 1-H Invoices 000181-000240                      14

24 1-I  Invoices 000241-000300                      15

25 1-J Checks and Invoices 000301-000335      15



                                                                      Hearing   10/16/12 5

1 1-K Updated Mountain Sewer Exhibits,        15

2       Customer Information, Rate Schedules,

3       et cetera

4 2    Pref i led Direct Testimony of Mitch         25

5       W inegar

6 3    Pref i led Direct Testimony of Lynn Wood  25

7 4    DPU's Recommendation and Exhibits      40

8 5    Letter f rom Mr. Hayes to the Division,    50

9       Dated August 28, 2012

10 6    Division's Response to Mr. Hayes'         50

11       Letter,  Dated September 7, 2012

12 7    Division's Response to Marsha Smith's  50

13       Letter,  Dated September 12, 2012

14 8    Marsha Smith's Letter to Division          50

15 .

16 .

17 .

18 .

19 .

20 .

21 .

22 .

23 .

24 .

25 .



                                                                      Hearing   10/16/12 6

1                               Hearing

2                         October 16, 2012

3                           PROCEEDINGS

4   THE HEARING OFFICER:  We'l l  be on the record. 

5 Good morning, everyone.  My name is David Clark.  I 'm the

6 designated presiding of f icer for the hearings this morning in

7 three dockets that are related, Docket Numbers 11-097-01,

8 11-097-02, and 11-097-03.  And this is the scheduled date for

9 hearings in these dockets, duly noticed through a Scheduling

10 Order and Notice of  Hearings that was posted some time ago,

11 actually in May of  2012. And let 's begin by taking appearances

12 of counsel.

13   Let 's begin with the applicant.

14   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  Thank you, Mr. Clark.  My

15 name is Craig Smith.  I 'm here on behalf  of  the applicant,

16 Mountain Sewer.  Along with me is Mel Smith and Rick Rathbun,

17 who are also representing Mountain Sewer.

18   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.

19   MS. SCHMID:  Patricia E. Schmid with the Attorney

20 General 's Off ice on behalf  of  the Division of  Public Uti l i t ies.

21   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.

22   Any other appearances?

23   MS. RINALDI:  Lesl ie Rinaldi for Celt ic Bank,

24 intervenor.

25   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  Al l  r ight.
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1   Well,  our purpose today is to hear evidence that

2 relates to an applicat ion for general rate increase, as well  as

3 evidence that relates to complaints f i led in Docket No.

4 11-097-01, and the matter of  the transfer of  Mountain Sewer

5 ownership that is Docket No. 11-097-02. The general rate

6 increase docket is 11-097-03.

7   So, Mr. Smith, how would you l ike to proceed?

8   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  At this t ime, rather than

9 presenting any opening statements, we'd l ike to cal l  Mr. Ray

10 Bowden as a witness.

11   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  You can

12 test i fy f rom there, Mr. Bowden.

13   Would you raise your r ight hand, please.  Do you

14 solemnly swear that the test imony you are about to give shall be

15 the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

16   THE WITNESS:  I  do.

17   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.

18   RAY BOWDEN, having been f irst duly sworn, was

19 examined and test i f ied as fol lows:

20 DIRECT EXAMINATION

21 BY-MR.CRAIG SMITH:

22 Q.   Mr. Bowden, can you just state your name and

23 address for the record, please.

24 A.   My name is Ray Bowden.  I  l ive at 5393 East 3850

25 North in Eden, Utah.
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1   THE REPORTER:  I 'm sorry.  Could I get him to 

2 spell  his name?

3   THE WITNESS:  Yes.  Ray, R-A-Y, and Bowden,

4 B-O-W-D-E-N.

5 BY MR. CRAIG SMITH:

6 Q.   Mr. Bowden, would you take just a few minutes and

7 explain kind of  your background in waste water management--I

8 know you've had some experience with that--and also how you

9 became involved with Mountain Sewer Company?

10 A.   I 've had--well,  for the last 30 years, I 've been

11 involved with--I  had my own sewer treatment faci l i ty in Utah. 

12 And it  was about 20 years ago I ran and operated that.   I  came--

13 I come--became involved with this project by a loan that I  made

14 to Mr. Ron Catanzaro, of  which the loan was unable to be

15 repaid. And at that point,  I  took over some of the real estate and

16 the sewer and the water company.

17 Q.   Okay.  And about what t ime--when was that that

18 you became--took over those companies?

19 A.   I  think it  was in August of  last year.

20 Q.   Okay.  And how is Mountain Sewer Corporat ion,

21 how is it  actually owned?

22 A.   Mountain Sewer is owned by Valley Uti l i ty.   And

23 Valley Uti l i ty is owned by KBC Leasing.

24 Q.   Okay.  And who is the owner of  KBC Leasing?

25 A.   My wife.
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1 Q.   And her name is Peggy Bowden, is that--

2 A.   Peggy Bowden.

3 Q.   And what 's your posit ion with Mountain Sewer

4 Company?

5 A.   I 'm the general manager.  I  oversee the day-to-day

6 operat ions of  the sewer company, payables, receivables, any

7 maintenance and repair that needs to be done to that faci l i ty.  

8 And for the last--ever since I took over, i t 's just been a process

9 of revamping the system and trying to bring it  up to standards to

10 where i t  wi l l  fal l  into good compliance with the State.

11 Q.   Okay.  And that's been the posit ion you've held

12 ever since your ownership changed last year?

13 A.   Yes.

14 Q.   And just take just a couple minutes and talk about

15 some of  the--the condit ion that you found the sewer system to

16 be in when you took over as the general manager and some of

17 the upgrade and repairs that you have undertaken.

18 A.   Well,  when I f irst took over, there was a massive

19 amount of  things that needed to be repaired, replaced, and

20 brought up to standards.  I  worked--I  spent a lot of  t ime with

21 Mitch W inegar.  He is one of  the engineers that worked on that

22 project for several years prior to me being involved with i t .   And

23 there was some--there was a f looding situat ion that occurred

24 when a plow truck uncovered one of the manholes.  And a lot of

25 the storm water f rom the Old Stone Basin Road went into the
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1 manhole and went down into the l i f t  stat ions and tore out some

2 of the pumps and--back prior to me owning that.   There was

3 some serious problems in that there was some of  the pumps

4 that was destroyed.  There was a lot of  rocks and debris that

5 was f i l t rated through the system. So when I come in, one of  the

6 f irst things I  wanted to do was camera all  the systems, see what

7 was wrong, see what we needed to repair.

8   We replaced about 260 l ineal feet of  pressurized

9 sewer l ine, cameraed the whole system.  We had Mitch work

10 with me on repair ing the pumps and replacing the pumps that

11 were damaged.  There was check valves that was--not had

12 worked for several years.  And we replaced the check valves

13 and elbows and new seats in the l i f t  stat ion.  We went and did a

14 lot of  work to the sewer lagoon systems.  We instal led a

15 turnaround system to where, prior to me having that,  the Mack

16 trucks, when they had to go pump the l i f t  stat ion, would have to

17 go up in the subdivision and dump in a manhole that was around

18 homes, which the homeowners despised.  In one of their

19 complaints, they wanted to have an area to where we could

20 actually go down to lagoons and dump.  I  bui l t--and  that 's all

21 done, with the exception of  the roto mil l  being placed in that

22 turnaround to have the trucks go down to the sewer lagoons.

23   Every week there's something else that we're

24 f inding, and we're working on it .   But we took i t  f rom a system

25 that was just marginal at best to--there's st i l l  some things that
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1 we need to get accomplished and get handled.  And hopeful ly,

2 with the rate adjustment and a l i t t le bit  of  the money that we'l l

3 be able to get,  we can make those f inal adjustments to the

4 system to bring i t  up to a f irst-class system.

5 Q.   Thank you.  Mr. Bowden, do you recall  f i l ing

6 pref i led testimony in this proceeding?

7 A.   I  do.

8 Q.   Have you had a chance to, in the last few days,

9 review that pref i led test imony?

10 A.   I  did yesterday.

11 Q.   Any changes or correct ions you'd l ike to make to

12 that pref i led test imony at this t ime?

13 A.   No, there's none.

14 Q.   Okay.  And now that you're under oath, would you

15 be wil l ing to af f irm that testimony is--pref i led testimony is your

16 test imony in this proceeding?

17 A.   I t  is.

18   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  Okay.  Also--and Rick, i f  you

19 could pass those--I 'm going to go through it  just quickly to the

20 exhibits.  But can you give the extra copies to others?

21 BY MR. CRAIG SMITH:

22 Q.   Also as part of  the pref i led test imony, Mr. Bowden,

23 we had Exhibits A through K.  And I bel ieve you have a copy of

24 those exhibits in f ront of  you.  And I 'd just l ike to quickly identify

25 each one and ask that they be admitted.
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1   First of  al l ,  could you take a minute and tel l  me

2 what exhibit--I ' l l  give you a second here to pass these out.

3   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  Why don't  you give one there.

4 And let 's give one to the hearing of f icer.

5   MR. RATHBUN:  May I approach?

6   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  Mr. Clark, these have been

7 submitted prior,  but just for convenience, you've got a set there. 

8 And I 'm just going to have Mr. Bowden just quickly identify

9 which each type is and then I ' l l  ask that they be admitted.

10 BY MR. CRAIG SMITH:

11 Q.   So could you tel l  us what Exhibit A is, Mr. Bowden.

12 A.   I t 's the updated check index with invoices.

13 Q.   So that 's the check index for Mountain Sewer

14 Company?

15 A.   Correct.

16   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  I 'd move for admission of

17 Exhibit  A.

18   MS. SCHMID:  No object ion.

19   THE HEARING OFFICER:  I t  wi l l  be received. 

20               Exhibit-A received into evidence

21   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  Thank you.

22 BY MR. CRAIG SMITH:

23 Q.   Could I  also ask you to identify Exhibit  B.

24 A.   I t 's bank statements and check copies.

25 Q.   Would that be the bank statements and check
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1 copies f rom the year 2011 af ter you took over management of

2 the company?

3 A.   Yes.

4   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  I 'd move for admission of

5 Exhibit  B.      

6   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Received. 

7             Exhibit-B received into evidence

8 BY MR. CRAIG SMITH:

9 Q.   How about identifying Exhibit  C for me, Mr.

10 Bowden.

11 A.   I t 's the same thing, bank statements and check

12 copies for 2012.

13   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  Okay.  I 'd move for admission

14 of Exhibit  C.

15   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Received.  

16              Exhibit-C received into evidence

17 BY MR. CRAIG SMITH:

18 Q.   Exhibit  D.  Can you identify what Exhibit  D is?

19 A.   These are the checks for 2012.

20 Q.   So those are copies of  the actual checks.  Is that

21 right?

22 A.   Correct.

23   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  I  move for admission of Exhibit

24 D.

25   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Received. 
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1             Exhibit-D received into evidence

2 BY MR. CRAIG SMITH:

3 Q.   Please identify Exhibit  E for me, please.

4 A.   These are invoices--this invoice is for Mountain

5 Sewer.

6 Q.   These invoices f rom various vendors and workmen

7 and other people that you hired to make improvements or

8 maintenance on this system?

9 A.   Correct.

10   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  I 'd move for admission of

11 Exhibit  E.

12   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Received. 

13              Exhibit-E received into evidence

14 BY MR. CRAIG SMITH: 

15 Q.   Please identify Exhibit  F for me.

16 A.   These are addit ional invoices.

17 Q.   They are also ones that are incurred by Mountain

18 Sewer Company.  Is that correct?

19 A.   Correct.

20   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  I 'd move for admission of

21 Exhibit  F.

22   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Received. 

23             Exhibit-F received into evidence

24 BY MR. CRAIG SMITH:

25 Q.   Please identify Exhibit  G for me.
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1 A.   These are bank statements--or they're just invoices.

2 Q.   Another set of  invoices?

3 A.   Correct.

4 Q.   I 'd move for admission of  Exhibit  G.

5   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Received. 

6              Exhibit-G received into evidence

7 BY MR. CRAIG SMITH:

8 Q.   Please identify Exhibit  H.

9 A.   That 's addit ional invoices.

10   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  I 'd move for admission of

11 Exhibit  H.

12   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Received.  

13               Exhibit-H received into evidence

14 BY MR. CRAIG SMITH:

15 Q.   Exhibit  I?

16 A.   Addit ional invoices.

17   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  I 'd move for admission of

18 Exhibit  I .

19   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Received. 

20             Exhibit-I  received into evidence

21 BY MR. CRAIG SMITH:

22 Q.   Exhibit  J?

23 A.   Checks and invoices.

24   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  I 'd move for admission of

25 Exhibit  J.



                                                                      Hearing   10/16/12 16

1   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Received. 

2              Exhibit-J received into evidence

3 BY MR. CRAIG SMITH:

4 Q.   And Exhibit  K.

5   THE WITNESS:  I t 's updated Mountain Sewer

6 exhibits, customer information, rate schedules, et cetera.

7   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  I 'd move for admission of

8 Exhibit  K.

9   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Received. 

10             Exhibit-K received into evidence

11 BY MR. CRAIG SMITH:

12 Q.   One last question, Mr. Bowden, before I  f inish, is:  

13 Could you take a minute and explain why the rate increase that

14 Mountain Sewer is asking for is important to you.

15 A.   Well,  i t 's important to me because, I mean, there's

16 no way to run this company unless I  can have enough money at

17 the end of  the month to pay the ut i l i ty bi l ls and bring this system

18 up to a, not a Cadil lac system, but a system that wil l  at least

19 meet the state specif icat ions that we need to fol low.  The

20 aerat ion system that 's not working now that needs to be done,

21 the day-to-day operat ion of  the system, there's no way for me to

22 run that company without having the condit ional information at

23 that we provided folks over here to review.  And we're not trying

24 to make any addit ional money, we're just trying to pay the bil ls.  

25 But in prior months, I 've not had enough money to pay the bi l ls
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1 to keep it  in operat ion.

2   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  Okay.  Mr. Clark, that 's al l  the

3 questions I  have for Mr. Bowden.  I  don't  know if  you have any

4 questions or anybody else has any questions. But I  tender him

5 for that purpose.

6   MS. SCHMID:  Could we have just one moment?

7   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Sure.

8   MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.

9   We're good.

10   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  I  just have a

11 question about the test imony, pref i led test imony, of  Lynn Wood

12 and Mitch W inegar.

13   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  Okay.

14   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Does Mr. Bowden's--

15 does the foundation you laid, did you mean that to apply to

16 these--

17   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  Well,  Mr. W inegar is here, and

18 I was going to just have him just conf irm his test imony.

19   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Oh, f ine.

20   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  Now, Lynn Wood is supposed

21 to be here, but I  don't  see him here.  So I don't  know if  anybody

22 has any knowledge about where his whereabouts--the last I

23 knew, he was supposed to be here.  But somehow--I don't  know

24 if  he's out wandering the halls, or.

25   MR. MELVEN SMITH:  I  talked to him two days ago.
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1 He was planning on coming.

2   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  Rick, do you want to go out

3 and see if  you can track down Mr.--but I--yeah.  I  would just

4 brief ly cal l  Mr. W inegar at this t ime just to have him af f irm his

5 test imony.

6   THE HEARING OFFICER:  That 's f ine.  And I don't

7 have any further questions for Mr. Bowden.  So unless there's

8 an objection, I  would receive in evidence the document entit led,

9 "Direct Testimony of  Ray Bowden on Behalf  of  Mountain Sewer

10 Corporat ion," dated July 26, 2012.  And we'l l  mark that Exhibit

11 1.

12   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  Thank you. 

13             Exhibit-1 received into evidence

14   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  Okay.  At this t ime, I  would

15 like to cal l Mr. Mitch W inegar to the stand.

16   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. W inegar, i t  would be

17 helpful i f  we could get you in f ront of  a microphone, so.

18   THE WITNESS:  You want me to just come up

19 here?

20   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yeah, that 's f ine.  Thank

21 you.

22   Would you raise your r ight hand, please.  Do you

23 solemnly swear that the test imony you are about to give shall be

24 the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

25   THE WITNESS:  Yes.
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1   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  Please be

2 seated.

3   Counsel.

4   MITCH WINEGAR, having been f irst duly sworn,

5 was examined and test i f ied as fol lows:

6 DIRECT EXAMINATION

7 BY-MR.CRAIG SMITH:

8 Q.   Mr. W inegar, could you give us your ful l  name and

9 address, please, and spell  your name for the reporter.

10 A.   Mitch W inegar, M-I-T-C-H, W inegar,

11 W-I-N-E-G-A-R.  Address?  14411 Fox Creek,

12 Herriman, Utah.

13 Q.   And could you tell  us what your professional

14 endeavors are.

15 A.   In this case, I 've worked with Mountain Sewer

16 Company and the water company for a number of  years, long

17 prior to Mr. Bowden becoming involved with Dr. Catanzaro. I

18 work for Utah Pump and Motor Supply Company as well  as two

19 or three other companies involved in water and waste water

20 management.  Sell  pumps, service pumps, and al l  types of

21 equipment that are relevant to the sewer company and have

22 maintained and worked on the pumps, the blowers, and many

23 other aspects of  the Mountain Sewer Company for over 20

24 years.

25 Q.   Okay.  And so you have--you have a lot of  hands-on
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1 experience with the sewer company, I  take i t?

2 A.   Yes.

3 Q.   And you're one of  the--you work as a consultant or-

4 -

5 A.   Yes.

6 Q.   --contract labor when--

7 A.   Contract labor, consultant,  whatever is necessary.

8 Q.   Okay.  Could you just take a minute and talk about

9 the condit ion of  the sewer company prior to Mr. Bowden taking

10 control as the general manager?

11 A.   Well,  we were struggling to keep things going. I t

12 was crisis management.  Whatever needed to be f ixed, we had

13 to keep f ixed.  Dr. Catanzaro, in my opinion, struggled to make

14 ends meet.  He struggled to pay us. However, he gave us a lot

15 of promises that i f  we would continue to maintain the system--

16 you can't  just walk away f rom a sewer company, especial ly one

17 where you have l i f t  pumps.  The sewage is constantly f lowing

18 and constantly has to be pumped.  And he simply couldn't  say,

19 "I 'm going to shut things of f  unt i l  I  get more money." But he did

20 have a lot of  problems, which I can't  speak to very much.

21   I  know from our part we did what we could to

22 manage the problems and keep the sewage going and so forth

23 and to maintain.  But we made lots of  recommendations for

24 upgrades, which we were told numerous t imes just couldn't  be

25 afforded.  And Dr. Catanzaro was looking forward to an infusion
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1 of money that apparently never came.  And we've been working

2 with Mr. Bowden ever since he took over the system.

3 Q.   Do you understand what the phrase "deferred

4 maintenance" means?

5 A.   Yes.

6 Q.   Would that be applicable here?

7 A.   In some cases, yes.

8 Q.   Okay.  And then since Mr. Bowden took over as 

9 general manager, could you just take a few minutes and talk

10 about some of  the improvements, upgrades, repairs, things l ike

11 that that 's been done with Mountain Sewer?

12 A.   Yes.  The most serious problem that we thought

13 Mountain Sewer had was that i t  had continual problems with the

14 force main, which is the l ine into which the sewage is pumped

15 that del ivers i t  to the treatment ponds. That would plug on a

16 regular basis, as would the pumps.

17   We had suggested to Dr. Catanzaro that that l ine

18 be TV'd, that i t  be excavated.  Something had to be done. But

19 he never had the funds to hire anybody to do that. That type of

20 work is beyond our scope.  We had suggested some local

21 excavators work on that.  That's one of the f irst things Mr.

22 Bowden did was he had a company come in and take a look at

23 that l ine, TV the l ine.  He found a lot of  problems with i t .   As he

24 stated, he replaced several hundred feet of  that l ine,

25 straightened it  out,  got r id of  bad f i t t ings and some damage that



                                                                      Hearing   10/16/12 22

1 had occurred when contractors had dug through it ,  and things

2 like that.   That made things a lot better because the clogging

3 issues diminished considerably af ter that.   He's had some work

4 done on the pumps related to the f looding that he mentioned

5 that happened prior to his acquiring the company.  When that

6 f lood happened, a lot of  debris--rocks, gravel,  st icks, weeds--

7 had gone through the pumps, damaged the seals, the bearings,

8 things l ike that.  And so he's taken care of  a lot of  those issues. 

9 There are st i l l  other issues that need to be taken care of ,  such

10 as a screening process to eliminate further clogging.  We're st i l l

11 experiencing clogging on a periodic basis, but not as badly as

12 before.

13 Q.   So there are some addit ional improvements that

14 sti l l  need to be made?

15 A.   Yes.

16 Q.   And one of  them you mentioned was instal l ing a

17 screen?

18 A.   A screening system, i f  you wil l ,  that takes a lot of

19 debris that comes in, prevents i t  f rom going through the pumps,

20 and is able to be extracted and disposed of .   And it  doesn't  have

21 to be pumped up into the l ine and potential ly clog the l ine or the

22 pumps.

23 Q.   Any other improvements that st i l l  need to be made

24 to the system?

25 A.   There are several that are l isted in that
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1 pre-test imony that I  gave.

2   MR. MELVEN SMITH:  I  did get ahold of  Mr. Wood,

3 and he is st i l l  in his of f ice for some reason.  We could get him

4 down here.  I t  would probably take him about 30 to 40 minutes. 

5 Or I  don't know if  you have capabil i ty here to do i t

6 telephonical ly.  What would you rather i t  be, and we'l l  proceed.

7   THE HEARING OFFICER:  I  just need a basis on

8 which to receive his test imony.  Perhaps Mr. Bowden could

9 provide that if  he's famil iar with i t .   Or i f  not,  i f  there isn't  an

10 object ion from the counsel present, we could st ipulate to its

11 admission--or you could, I  think.

12   MS. SCHMID:  We would be wil l ing to do that.

13   MR. MELVEN SMITH:  Okay.

14   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  Let 's just do that.  That would

15 be f ine.  Thank you.  I  appreciate that.

16   MR. MELVEN SMITH:  Sorry to interrupt.

17   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  No, that 's f ine.

18 BY MR. CRAIG SMITH:

19 Q.   You mentioned your pref i led test imony.  You did f i le

20 pref i led testimony in this matter.  Is that true, Mr. W inegar?

21 A.   Yes.

22 Q.   And have you had a chance to recently review that

23 pref i led testimony?

24 A.   I  have.

25 Q.   And are you prepared to af f irm that pref i led
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1 test imony today, or is there something you'd l ike to change or

2 correct?    

3 A.   Well,  I  would simply state that a lot of  this

4 information was gathered prior to the date of  the test imony. 

5 The equipment up there has to run every day. And so normal

6 wear and tear and deteriorat ion to matters that--for instance,

7 bearings that needed to be replaced six months ago are in much

8 dire need of  replacement now. So if  anything, these things have

9 become more crucial in the interim.  Other than that,  yes, I ' l l

10 af f irm everything that 's in there.

11   Mr. Bowden has taken care of some of  these things

12 already, has worked on some of  these things.  The alarm system

13 has received some maintenance.

14 Q.   So some of  these things that you mentioned have

15 been taken care of  since then, but your pref i led test imony is

16 accurate--

17 A.   Yes.

18 Q.   --that you provided?

19 A.   Yes.

20 Q.   Okay.

21   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  I  don't bel ieve I have any

22 further questions for Mr. W inegar, unless--and happy if

23 somebody else does.

24   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Cross-examination?

25   MS. SCHMID:  No questions.
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1   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. W inegar, you are

2 excused.  Thank you very much for your test imony.

3   THE WITNESS:  You bet.

4   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  Then assuming we have--my

5 other witness, missing witness, today, obviously, is Mr. Lynn

6 Wood.  He's the cert i f ied public accountant that 's handled the

7 books I think both before and af ter Mr. Bowden took over

8 running the system.  And if  we have a st ipulation to admit his

9 test imony, I  think that 's al l I  have.

10   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.

11   And Ms. Schmid, you agree with the st ipulat ion that

12 Mr. Smith is of fering?

13   MS. SCHMID:  Yes, I do.

14   THE HEARING OFFICER:  I ' l l  receive Mr. W inegar's

15 prepared test imony as Exhibit  2 and Mr. Wood's as Exhibit  3. 

16         Exhibits-2thru3 received into evidence

17   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  And at some point--maybe this

18 is best af ter we do the rest of--the Division makes its

19 presentat ion.  But obviously, you did ask that we have some

20 input on the attorneys fees issue.  I 'm happy to do that

21 whenever, Mr. Clark, you feel that 's appropriate.

22   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  I 'm going to

23 have you do that in just a moment.

24   I just wanted to note that the Exhibits A through K,

25 the f inancial records, I 'm going to treat those as associated with
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1 Exhibit  1, Mr. Bowden's test imony.  So they'l l  be exhibits to the

2 exhibit.

3   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  Thank you.

4   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Exhibits A through K to

5 Exhibit  1 is how I 'm going to address those.

6   And yes, Mr. Smith, i f  you'd now address the

7 fol lowing.  And just for the record, the Commission's in receipt

8 of  a letter f rom Marsha Smith, dated September 10, 2012, that

9 primari ly addresses the issue of  attorneys fees in this matter. 

10 And she represents that she is on the negotiat ing committee

11 representing the customers of  Mountain Sewer, and in part icular

12 the 32 customers of  the Summit at Ski Lake Gated Community

13 Associat ion, Inc.

14   Mrs. Smith is not present today, but we have this

15 letter f rom her that 's a part of  the record in this proceeding. 

16 And so I ask Mr. Smith i f  he has any comment on the content of

17 the letter.

18   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  I  do, and I ' l l  just try to be--

19 brief ly address this.  And what I 'd l ike to, I  guess, f irst talk

20 about is the--a l i t t le bit  of  the history of  this matter.  And when I

21 say "this matter,"  there's actually three matters.  And again,

22 that 's part of  the reason why--obviously, the more matters you

23 have, the more the attorneys fees are going to be.  And the

24 three matters are:  There were--I  bel ieve we've addressed this--

25 one is the rate proceeding, which has been, obviously, the
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1 biggest concern and the biggest matter.  But also, this began

2 not as a rate proceeding, but there were two other matters. 

3 One, a number of  complaints about the level of  service--that

4 was received by the Commission--f rom the users of  Mountain

5 Sewer as to the level of  service they were receiving; and two,

6 there was--the third matter is the transfer of  the ownership of

7 the company f rom Dr. Ron Catanzaro to the current owners of

8 Mountain Sewer, which is principal ly Mr. Bowden's wife, Peggy,

9 and he's the general manager. So we've had--and this has gone

10 on, not just for a few months.  I  think we began probably in early

11 2011, as I  recall ,  on these matters.  And we've had a number of

12 hearings, a number of  meetings.

13   I ' l l  let Mr. Mel Smith, who has actually--a lot of  his

14 time has been spent with meeting with the various--he kind of--I

15 kind of  handled the things here at the Public Service

16 Commission.  He kind of  handled--we kind of  divided

17 responsibi l i t ies.  And he kind of took the lead on working

18 direct ly with the customers and complainants.

19   What I  found when I walked into this situat ion was

20 a very contentious situat ion with many, many dissatisf ied

21 customers and a long ways that needed to go to "r ight the ship,"

22 so to speak.  That wasn't  surprising.  I 'd worked with--prior to

23 working with Mountain Sewer, I  had worked with the water

24 company that was also owned by Dr. Catanzaro.  I  was aware

25 that he was under some extreme f inancial pressures because of
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1 the--some of  the drop in real estate values, which have been

2 very dramatic around the country, but part icularly dramatic in

3 the Ogden valley, where this company and where his real estate

4 holdings were located.  And he was having a very dif f icult  t ime

5 doing that.

6   We've had a lot of  hearings, a lot of  meetings. This

7 has been not an easy--even though it  started with a bang and

8 appears to be ending with a whimper today. But there's been a

9 lot of  work and a lot of  preparat ion into--one of the things we

10 put a tremendous amount of  t ime into, more so than we would

11 typically do on a case, was there were not very good f inancial

12 records upon which we could base a request for a rate increase

13 or rate case here at the Commission.  And attorneys at my

14 off ice and others, including one--we used a law clerk very

15 extensively, who is also a Cert i f ied Public Accountant, Adam

16 Long, who is now back in law school f inishing his third year of

17 law school.   But he worked nearly ful l  t ime on, you know, trying

18 to create or recreate or f ind or gather the f inancial records,

19 which were very sparse, and to try to put together enough of  a

20 f inancial picture so that we could come in here and be able to

21 show kind of  what the company needed and what--you know,

22 and have an accurate sort of  thing.  You know, i t 's one thing to

23 come in and say, "Well,  we need more money."  But i t 's another

24 thing to come in and say, "Here's al l  the expenses. Here's been

25 our expenses, here's been our income.  Here's where our
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1 shortfal ls are."  And those records have not been well  kept, i f

2 kept at al l .   And so a tremendous amount of  t ime and ef fort  went

3 into organizing, recreating those documents and those sorts of

4 things.

5   And so, you know, those are some of  the

6 challenges, besides the number of  complaints.  As you know, at

7 f irst the complainants were quite vigorous, demanding

8 discovery, things l ike that.   Now they've at least sat isf ied

9 themselves, I  guess, enough that they don't  even need to show

10 up to the hearing.  But we st i l l  had to respond to discovery

11 requests and those sorts of  things.  And l ike every other

12 attorney, everything I do takes t ime.  And that's what I  charge

13 for.  And that 's a l i t t le bit  of  background.

14   I 'm happy, if  the Commission would 

15 like--somewhere here in my mass of papers I  brought a copy of

16 all  my bi l l ings.  I 'd be happy to submit those for scrutiny by you,

17 Mr. Clark, or the Commission i f  you feel that 's necessary.  I 've

18 got nothing to hide on that.   I 'd be happy to submit that.

19   W ith that,  I 'd turn a few minutes over to Mel Smith

20 because he's been heavily involved on kind of  the other end of

21 this matter.

22   MR. MELVEN SMITH:  Sure.  Thank you.

23   The history that I  have with Mountain Sewer goes

24 back further than when Ray Bowden had acquired his interest

25 through his wife, at least.   And I have a series of  bi l l ings right
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1 here that have not been paid by Mountain Sewer when I was

2 representing Ron Catanzaro. And I haven't  submitted those,

3 haven't  given those to the Division.  So they're not part of  the

4 computat ion that 's before you.  I  have omitted those and wil l

5 work those out with Ray because, you know, those probably

6 were more historical.   But they come to about between 20 to

7 $30,000.

8   The issues began way before when Ray Bowden's

9 wife became involved.  And the complainants f irst started with

10 Weber County.  And so I  spent quite a bit  of  t ime in Weber

11 County in trying to address some of  the issues at the county

12 level,  because the County was the body polit ic.   Meeting with

13 the Commissioners there, we had several hearings.  I t  came up

14 before the Commission, and I had to prepare, you know, some

15 reports.  So this goes way back.

16   And there's also two other matters that we're

17 handling on behalf  of  Mountain Sewer that has to do with the

18 f looding.  There's a present lawsuit  with Philadelphia Insurance,

19 a lawsuit .   We're incurring fees there, which st i l l  remain unpaid. 

20 So the only thing that is before you are those bil l ings.

21   I f  you look at--I 've submitted, both to the Division

22 and as part of  the record, but the f irst bi l l ing that we're asking

23 for reimbursement for is dated August 8, 2012.  And so that 's

24 where we're looking at as part of  this rate case.  The others are

25 sti l l  out there. We'l l  be paid through some other means that we' l l
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1 have to work out.  I  spent a lot of  t ime, and I 've been at al l  the

2 hearings.  I  know it  looks l ike maybe there's a lot of  duplicat ion. 

3 There really hasn't .

4   As Mr. Smith indicated, I  have been involved in

5 several meetings up in the val ley with the homeowners. One of

6 the reasons why we don't  have a lot of  opposit ion today is Ray's

7 been very good--and I 've been involved in that-- in handling al l

8 the issues and disputes with the homeowners and their

9 concerns.  We've had a series of  meetings with them up in the

10 valley, showing them what we're doing, what their proposals

11 were.

12   I  also was involved in the reconstruction of  the

13 f inancials.  One of  the issues--one of  the main issues with Mr.

14 Zini is he was concerned what happened to al l the connection

15 fees.  And since we didn't  have those records, we went through

16 and audited each lot within the distr ict ,  pul l ing the vest ing deeds

17 and then gett ing the building permits to reconstruct the

18 maximum amount that the sewer company could have obtained,

19 and then showing how that money was used in infrastructure

20 and improvements.  So quite a bit  of  t ime.  But al l  of  that was

21 done to comply with some of  the data requests that the

22 intervenors had sent.

23   So those types of  things.  And then reconstruct ing

24 the f inancials with the income from the inception of  Mountain

25 Sewer back to 1984 to the current, we were involved in putt ing a
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1 lot of  that together.  And that complaint, with the documents that

2 are requested in the data request.  So it 's been an act ive f i le.

3   As Mr. Smith indicated, there's three dif ferent

4 matters here.  I t 's not just for the rate case.  And the lawsuit

5 took a fair amount of  t ime.  I  cal l  i t  the " lawsuit ,"  but the

6 def iciencies, the cause of  act ion that had to do with the f irst

7 cause of  act ion that we're here on and meeting up in the val ley

8 and making sure that those repairs were being done in the right

9 fashion.

10   So anyway, that 's kind of  a summary.  And again, I

11 have a copy right here i f  you need to look at that and if  you

12 have any specif ic questions.  But in general,  that 's the

13 summary.

14   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  For either of  you,

15 can you put what you've told me in the context of  the dollar

16 f igures that are mentioned in Ms. Smith's letter in paragraph--or

17 it 's the f irst reason that she l ists. I t 's at the bottom of  the f irst

18 page of  the letter.  And she refers to legal fees est imated for

19 the case of  50,000.  And then there's the f igure, 112,000.  And

20 then there's some bi l l ing totals f rom each of  your f irms.

21   And I just--are these numbers that you are

22 acquainted with?  Do they relate to the explanations you've

23 provided me?  Let me give you a moment to digest them, i f  you

24 need that.   Let 's be of f  the record. 

25        (A discussion was held of f  the record.)
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1   THE HEARING OFFICER:  On the record.

2   MR. MELVEN SMITH:  On that f irst one, i t  says

3 $50,000.  I 'd have to go back and research i t .   But my

4 recollect ion was, is when we f irst started, i t  was our goal in

5 meeting up in the valley and we'd indicated with al l  of  the

6 intervenors that--and we had laid out what needed to be done. 

7 And I actually addressed that.   I  said, "You know what?  We

8 could real ly do this very economically i f  we can have you"--we

9 actually had a--we kind of  had a l i t t le f ield tr ip and took them

10 around and showed them the sites and said, " If  you can look at

11 that and agree that these are def iciencies that need to be

12 corrected and we could st ipulate as to what the rate increase--

13 we'l l  give you complete visibi l i ty."   We gave them check

14 registers, those kinds of  things.

15   And so very early on, i t  was the intention to keep

16 the fees to a bear minimum as much as we could, but then we

17 couldn't get the cooperat ion.  And you've been in the hearings

18 you've known what has happened.  That f irst f igure of  50,000, I

19 recall  that that went in, i t  was by--what is his name?  Bryan--

20   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  Bryan Bryner.

21   MR. MELVEN SMITH:  Yeah.  And he put in an

22 estimate, but i t  was only f rom the Smith f irm.  I t  didn't  include

23 anything f rom me.  And when looked at i t ,  I  said, "Did you

24 include anything f rom me?"

25   And he said, "You know what?  I  don't  bel ieve so."
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1   So that probably is that f irst f igure that went out.  

2 But it  didn't  include anything f rom my f irm.  And so af ter that,

3 we amended that and made sure we included both f irms.  To say

4 that where i t  says in a matter of  two months it  went up to 112, i t

5 was probably more l ike about double that.   I t  was probably more

6 like 90,000 at that t ime, not 50.  And so that would account for

7 that.

8   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.

9   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  Your Honor, and I 'd l ike to

10 also, for the second thing, I 'd l ike to point out:  Other than

11 hearings here at the Commission, Mr. Smith and I have not

12 attended any of  the same, because I have attended none of  the

13 meetings with the homeowners associat ion since he's been the

14 one handling that part of  the case.  I  have not even been up to

15 Mountain Sewer in four or f ive years.  I 've been handling, l ike I

16 said, the things here.  And he's been handling those.  And I

17 know they've had very many, lengthy meetings.  And again,

18 that 's probably the largest reason why we don't  have a room ful l

19 of  intervenors here is because of  the ef forts they took to

20 educate the customers as to what was going on and what the

21 money was needed for and what i t  was being used for,  which I

22 think was, you know, in my view, t ime very well  spent.  But I  had

23 no role in that.

24   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Schmid, anything

25 that the Division would l ike to contribute on this subject?
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1   MS. SCHMID:  Yes.  Mr. Mark Long, the Division's

2 witness in these dockets, carefully examined the attorneys fees

3 that were submitted and ended up disallowing some of  them and

4 proposing that the attorneys fees be recovered over, I  bel ieve,

5 f ive years?

6   MR. LONG:  Correct.

7   MS. SCHMID:  He can either address that now in

8 more detail ,  or he can address that as part of  his presentat ion

9 on the combined three dockets, whichever you would prefer.

10   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  And that would

11 include the letter that the Division prepared as well?

12   MS. SCHMID:  Yes.

13   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Let 's take that up

14 when we have Mr. Long on the stand.  Thank you.

15   Anything further, Mr. Smith?

16   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  No, I have nothing further for

17 the applicant.

18   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Al l r ight.

19   Ms. Schmid?

20   MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.  I  bel ieve that Mr. Mark

21 Long has been sworn in al l three dockets; however, out of  an

22 abundance of  caution, i f  he could be sworn in all  three dockets.

23   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.

24   Would you raise your right hand, please, Mr. Long. 

25 Do you solemnly swear that the test imony you are about to give
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1 shall  be the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

2   THE WITNESS:  Yes.

3   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.

4   MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.

5   MARK LONG, having been f irst duly sworn, was

6 examined and test i f ied as fol lows:

7 DIRECT EXAMINATION

8 BY-MS.SCHMID:

9 Q.   Mr. Long, could you please state your ful l  name,

10 business address, employer, and posit ion for the record.

11 A.   Yes.  My ful l  name is Mark Alan Long, A-L-A-N for a

12 middle name.  I  am a ut i l i ty analyst for the Utah Division of

13 Public Uti l i t ies.  My work address is 160 East 300 South, Salt

14 Lake City, 84114.

15 Q.   Thank you.  In conjunction with your employment

16 with the Division, have you part icipated on behalf  of  the Division

17 in the three dockets we are here to discuss today?

18 A.   Yes, I  have.

19 Q.   Did you prepare and cause to be f i led the Division

20 memo dated August 23 that was Exhibit  1 to your test imony,

21 which consisted of  three pages? 

22   Of note, Exhibit  1 has its own exhibits, 1.1 through

23 1.6, 2.0, 3.1 through 3.11, 7.8, and 4.0.

24   Did you prepare and cause those to be f i led?

25 A.   Yes, although I 'm not sure about 7.8.
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1   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Be of f  the record. 

2        (A discussion was held of f  the record.)

3   THE HEARING OFFICER:  On the record.

4 BY MS. SCHMID:

5 Q.   Mr. Long, would that be Exhibit  3.8 rather than 7.8?

6 A.   That 's correct.

7 Q.   Thank you.  So do you have any changes to what

8 was f i led on August 23 in addit ion to changing Exhibit  7.8 to

9 3.8?

10 A.   Yes, I  do.

11 Q.   Could you please discuss those?  And I wil l  note

12 that substi tute pages have been distr ibuted.

13 A.   Yes.  On Exhibit  3.2, under the "Income Statement

14 Analysis,"  on Column C, Line 7, i t  shows the division adjustment

15 of 12,786.  I 'm not sure what happened to the formula, but that

16 really should be 1038.

17 Q.   Mr. Long, does that change f low through to any

18 other exhibits?

19 A.   No, i t  doesn't .   That was just there merely for

20 information.

21 Q.   So do you adopt as your test imony the direct

22 test imony that you f i led August 23 with the Division's

23 recommendation and accompanying exhibits and the corrected

24 Exhibit  3.2?

25 A.   Yes, I  do.
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1 Q.   Do you have a summary to give?

2   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Just before we go to the

3 summary, could you help me with--I  was looking for the number

4 that you were referring to.  Could you help me identify that on

5 3.2?  Which l ine changed?

6   THE WITNESS:  It 's on Line 7, Column C.

7   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Oh, I see.  Okay.  Thank

8 you.  The one in yel low that says "Corrected Amount."

9   THE WITNESS:  Yes.

10   THE HEARING OFFICER:  I  don't  know how I

11 overlooked that,  but thank you.

12   THE WITNESS:  It  was too obvious.

13   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.

14   MS. SCHMID:  And actually at this point,  I 'd l ike to

15 move for admission of  the direct test imony with exhibits and

16 correct ions as noted today.

17   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Any object ion?

18   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  No object ion.

19 BY MS. SCHMID:

20 Q.   Mr. Long–

21   THE HEARING OFFICER:  I 'm going to receive that

22 entire package as Exhibit  4.  And then it  wi l l  have the internal

23 exhibit numbers that we've been referring to. 

24               Exhibit-4 received into evidence

25 BY MS. SCHMID:
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1 Q.   Mr. Long, do you have a summary?

2 A.   Yes, I  do.

3 Q.   Please proceed.

4 A.   Just so the Court knows, I had a summary.  I 've

5 been hearing some of  the other test imony.  I 've gone in and

6 tried to condense that even further.

7   As the Court knows, there's three dockets before

8 the Commission today addressing customer complaints, which is

9 docketed No. 11-097-01; transfer of  ownership, which is

10 11-097-02; and applicat ion for rate increase, interim rates, and

11 special assessment, which is Docket 11-097-03.

12   Just for some quick background for the record,

13 Mountain Sewer Corporation is a privately owned,

14 Commission-regulated public ut i l i ty that provides sanitary sewer

15 service to residential and other customers near Huntsvi l le, Utah. 

16 Utah Public Service Commission issued Mountain Sewer's f irst

17 CPCN in June of  1985.  The rates were original ly approved at

18 $22 per month, and it  remained the same unti l  the Commission

19 granted the applicat ion for the interim rate increase on May 21,

20 2012. 

21   In October of  '91, the Commission granted

22 Mountain Sewer's request for an expanded service area. The

23 data and calculat ions the Division used in this  analysis are

24 based on Mountain Sewer's December 31, 2012, projected

25 connection and standby fees of  130 and 64, respectively.
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1   Addit ional information is available in the Division's

2 34-page recommendation and the 20 support ing exhibits that

3 Ms. Schmid recently noted.

4   Mountain Sewer f irst came to the Division's

5 attent ion on or about February 17, 2011, af ter concerned sewer

6 customers f i led an informal complaint with the Division's

7 customer service sect ion.  On Apri l  18, a formal complaint was

8 f i led regarding operational issues as well  as al legations of

9 f inancial irregularit ies.

10   The Division viewed numerous pictures as well  as

11 videos provided by the complainants.  The Complaint was

12 signed, Docket 11-097-01.  Division personnel, along with Dan

13 Grif f in of  the Utah Department of  Environmental Quali ty,

14 inspected the sewer system.  Division personnel noted several

15 possible areas of  concern, but Mr. Grif f in found no evidence

16 that any sewage had entered Pineview Reservoir.

17   Many repairs have been made since the Complaint

18 was f i led, and the Division is unaware of  any recent addit ional

19 complaints regarding system operat ions.  An independent

20 engineer hired by the Division verif ied that the necessary

21 repairs were made and that they were prudent and necessary.  I

22 also inspected the sewer company af ter a majority of  the repairs

23 were made and could see what appeared to be vast

24 improvements.  The Division recommends that this port ion of  the

25 Complaint be dismissed.



                                                                      Hearing   10/16/12 41

1   Through the Division's analysis of  the f inancial

2 records, the Division concluded that Mountain Sewer was

3 subsidized by Dr. Catanzaro, the former owner, conservatively in

4 excess of  a mil l ion dollars, leaving no funds for Mr. Catanzaro's

5 personal use or to subsidize any of  his other companies.  The

6 Division also recommends that this port ion of the Complaint be

7 dismissed.

8   On August 18, 2011, in the middle of  invest igat ing

9 the Complaint,  Mountain Sewer's ownership was transferred

10 from Dr. Ron Catanzaro to Valley Uti l i ty,  and this matter was

11 assigned Docket 11-097-02.

12   Mr. Ray Bowden is the president and manager of

13 the sewer company.  The customers in the original complaint,

14 many of  whom are now intervenors, contested this transfer of

15 ownership.  As part of  i ts invest igat ion, the Division issued data

16 requests, reviewed loan documents and records f rom Weber

17 County, and concluded that none of the f inancial transactions,

18 legal fees--or legal fees were passed on to Mountain Sewer, and

19 the transfer of  ownership had no ef fect whatsoever on the rates

20 or the rate payers of Mountain Sewer.  In fact,  the new

21 ownership brought an inf lux of funds and also a knowledge base

22 that was instrumental in correct ing some of  the issues.

23   On Apri l  6, 2012, Mountain Sewer f i led a request

24 for a general rate increase, interim rates, and special

25 assessment.  Prior to this, Mountain Sewer had not sought an
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1 increase in rates and fees.  Although the Division's invest igat ion

2 was hampered by the lack of  records prior to Valley Uti l i ty's

3 ownership, through the fol lowing investigative techniques, the

4 Division obtained more than enough information needed to make

5 its recommendation to the Public Service Commission.  Some of

6 the Division's act ions included submitt ing mult iple data requests

7 to Mountain Sewer; part icipat ing in several meetings, both with

8 Mountain Sewer personnel and its engineers; as well  as

9 Mountain Sewer's attorneys and the intervenors reviewing each

10 and every communication, including emails and phone cal ls f rom

11 intervenors to ensure that al l  al legations and any evidence was

12 reviewed.  I ,  personally, received over 780 emails and sent 593

13 emails for this case.  And that 's not counting the communication

14 between the Attorney General 's of f ice as well as other members

15 of the Division.

16   I  also reviewed source documents f rom Mountain

17 Sewer's vendors verifying every material transaction, reviewing

18 and fol lowing up as needed for each check writ ten in i ts check

19 register; evaluating al l  f inancial records that,  by the way, were

20 kept impeccably since the transfer of  ownership; reviewing

21 information f rom past and current accountants and the

22 bookkeeper of  Mountain Sewer; and reviewing the

23 recommendation f rom the independent engineer hired by the

24 Division.

25   Really quickly regarding the interim rates. Mountain
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1 Sewer requested interim rates of  57.06 for connected customers

2 and 24.40 for standby customers, and provided the necessary

3 evidence to support their request.

4   The interim rates were recommended by the

5 Division and granted by the Commission on May 21, 2012.

6 Because of  the many unforeseen expenses that we've

7 addressed incurred by Mountain Sewer, the f inal

8 recommendation rates were actually higher than those ordered

9 for the interim rates.

10   The Division recommends that there is a true-up to

11 be set at $27.19 for connected customers and 85 cents for

12 standby customers for each month f rom May 14 to the date that

13 the new rates are approved.  Now that I  read this, i t  probably

14 should be f rom May 21 to the date the new rates were approved

15 when they were init ial ly approved by the Commission.

16   Mountain Sewer also requested a special

17 assessment to pay for past net operat ing losses, emergency

18 repairs, and replacement of  assets immediately fol lowing the

19 change of  ownership and pending urgently-needed repair and

20 replacement of  assets.  The total amount requested was

21 $171,791.83.

22   The Division recommends that the entire net

23 operat ing losses and past-due fees for services total ing $68,720

24 be denied because they are losses f rom past or already-incurred

25 costs from normal operations and would constitute
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1 impermissible retroact ive rate making.

2   The Division recommends the emergency repairs

3 and replacements immediately fol lowing the transfer of

4 ownership for $63,361.05 be removed from the special

5 assessment.  But since they were necessary to make the sewer

6 company safe, rel iable, and to provide adequate levels of

7 service, that they be included in the rate case and paid for

8 through rates.

9   Further, the Division recommends that the--

10   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Pardon me, Mr. Long.

11 Included in rate base?

12   THE WITNESS:  Yes.  And they are included in the

13 recommendation as well .

14   Further, the Division recommends that the pending,

15 urgently-needed repairs and replacement of  assets remain in the

16 special assessment because they are not typical or recurring

17 expenses.  And due to the nature and urgency of  the work, they

18 need to be completed as soon as possible.  Total cost of  these

19 repairs are $39,710.08.  The net ef fect of  the above

20 adjustments brings a special assessment amount recommended

21 from the request of  $171,793.83 to $39,710.08.  This also brings

22 the requested amount for each connection f rom $1204.94 to

23 $204.69.

24   In regards to the general rate case, the Division is

25 recommending the fol lowing fees and rates. They're
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1 recommending a monthly fee for standby customers of  $25.25,

2 total monthly fees for connected customers at $84.25.  We just

3 talked about the one-t ime special assessment of  $2--$204.69.  A

4 connection fee of  $5000 for those connections that are--that

5 have to be connected and the street torn up, so the connections

6 that are under the exist ing street,  and $3000 for those

7 connections that are installed before the street is put in.  A

8 hook-up fee of  $300, turn-on fee of  $100, turn-off  fee of  $100,

9 and a late fee of  18 percent per year.

10   The Division would also l ike to add because of  the

11 substantial legal fees and to provide some rel ief  for the rate

12 payers, the Division is recommending that the legal fees be paid

13 for over the next f ive years.  I f   these legal fees are not

14 included in the rates today, the rates would be $68 per

15 connection and $24 per standby. At the end of  f ive years,

16 Mountain Sewer should have another rate case.

17   The Division typical ly prefers to recommend that an

18 increase of  this scale be phased in over a period of  t ime. 

19 Unfortunately, with relat ively so few customers and pending

20 needs, Mountain Sewer does not have the luxury of  t ime.  In a

21 small ut i l i ty company such as this, there are few customers

22 among whom to spread the costs; thus, creating higher than

23 desirable rates.  While the Division is sensit ive to

24 recommending such a large increase, the increase is necessary

25 to pay for the costs of  operat ions and to establish a capital
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1 reserve through its revenues.

2   The Division believes that i ts recommended rates,

3 fees, and charges set forth are just and reasonable and

4 consistent with the public interest; and therefore, the Division

5 recommends that the Commission approve these new rates and

6 charges.

7 BY MS. SCHMID:

8 Q.   I  have one question.  I 'm seeking clari f icat ion on

9 something.

10   Is i t  the Division's intent ion that the emergency

11 repairs and replacements of assets, which immediately fol lowed

12 the transfer of  ownership in the  amount of  $63,361.05, be

13 included in the rate case and paid for through rates?

14 A.   Well,  more specif ical ly,  i t  should be included in the

15 rate base and paid for through rates.

16 Q.   Okay.  Thank you.

17   MS. SCHMID:  I f  we may have a recess for just a

18 moment or two, we wil l  obtain copies of  the Division's responses

19 to the two letters f i led by customers and then enter those into

20 the record.

21   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Just about t ime for a

22 normal recess in any event.  So let 's recess unti l  ten af ter.

23   MS. SCHMID:  Thank you. 

24  (A break was taken f rom 10:04 a.m. to 10:25 a.m.)

25   THE HEARING OFFICER:  We'l l  be on the record.
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1   Ms. Schmid.

2   MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.  In addit ion to DPU

3 Exhibit  4, the DPU would l ike to enter into evidence, which we

4 would ask to be marked DPU Exhibit  5, which is the letter dated

5 September 7, 2012.  I 'm sorry, just one moment.

6   Could we have just one more moment?

7   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Off  the record. 

8         (A discussion was held of f  the record.)

9   THE HEARING OFFICER:  On the record.

10 BY MS. SCHMID:

11 Q.   In addit ion to Exhibit  4, which was entered into

12 evidence previously, the Division would l ike to move into

13 evidence a letter dated August 28, 2012, f rom Mr. Hayes to the

14 Division.  And copies have been distr ibuted for that.

15   The Division would l ike to move into evidence as

16 Exhibit  6, the Division's response to Mr. Hayes' letter.  And the

17 Division's response is dated September 7, 2012.

18   And then also Exhibit  7, which would be the

19 Division's--and you have the letter f rom Ms. Smith in the record. 

20 So it  would be the Division's response to Marsha Smith, dated

21 September 12 with the attachments to that letter.  Those

22 address legal fees and other matters that have been raised in

23 this case.

24   THE HEARING OFFICER:  And that 's Exhibit  7?

25   MS. SCHMID:  Uh-huh.
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1   THE HEARING OFFICER:  DPU Exhibit  7.

2   And I think for clari ty of  the record, I 'd l ike to mark

3 Marsha Smith's letter as Exhibit  8.  Can we receive that into

4 evidence without a foundation?  Is there any object ion to doing

5 that–

6   MS. SCHMID:  No object ion.

7   THE HEARING OFFICER: --so we have them here

8 together?

9   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  No object ion. 

10         Exhibits-5thru8 received into evidence

11   MS. SCHMID:  And also before I  make Mr. Long

12 available for cross-examination and for questions f rom the

13 Commission, I  would l ike to recognize on the record his

14 professionalism, his di l igence, and his expert ise that he

15 exhibited throughout this matter.  This has been a very

16 complicated case and he has done a exemplary job.

17   THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

18   MS. SCHMID:  Mr. Long is now available for

19 cross-examination and questions.

20   THE WITNESS:  Af ter al l that,  I  have to be now?

21   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Well,  we're anxious to

22 hear what you have to say, Mr. Long, af ter that introduction.

23   I  do have a questions.  But Mr. Smith f irst.   Do you

24 have any?

25   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  I  have no questions.
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1   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.  Let 's begin

2 with the attorneys fees issues that the Exhibits 5 through 8

3 address.  And can you help me relate the attachments to Exhibit

4 7, which are various attorney bi l l ings?  Help me relate those to

5 Exhibit  3.9 in your test imony.  And then give me a sense of  what

6 Exhibit  3.9--just walk me through the totals and the adjustments

7 and--

8   THE WITNESS:  Okay.

9   THE HEARING OFFICER: --so I ' l l  understand how

10 these two sets of  materials connect with each other, i f  at al l .

11   THE WITNESS:  When we got the letter f rom

12 Marsha Smith, one of  the things that she wanted--or that she

13 thought was a l i t t le bit  suspect, perhaps, was there wasn't

14 enough detai l  in the attorney bi l l ings.  And, as I  explained to her

15 in the letter,  I  had actually deleted several of  the columns in the

16 information that I  received f rom the two dif ferent attorneys, just

17 for ease of  putt ing i t  into the schedule and not making i t  any

18 longer than it  was.

19   THE HEARING OFFICER:  So she had been

20 reacting to your Exhibit  3.9 in the letter.   Is that r ight?

21   THE WITNESS:  That 's correct.   That 's correct.

22   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.

23   THE WITNESS:  And so I  just sent her the ones

24 with greater detai l .   That appeared to satisfy her.  I  didn't  hear

25 anything more f rom her.
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1   THE HEARING OFFICER:  And so the column

2 "Adjustments"--that 's t i t led "Adjustments"--these are

3 adjustments you're assigning to the attorneys fees?

4   THE WITNESS:  Yes.  These are Division

5 adjustments.  There's footnotes on the very last page 

6 describing the reasons that they were adjusted out.  And we

7 went through those and, looking at the dif ferent cri teria, we

8 adjusted about, as I  recall ,  about $14,311 out of  those that we

9 felt didn't  belong in this rate case.

10   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.

11   THE WITNESS:  Yes.

12   THE HEARING OFFICER:  To a dif ferent subject.

13 I 'd l ike you to address the table in your Exhibit  4, pages 33--I 'm

14 sorry, 32 and 33, and relate that information to the table that 's

15 at page .4 of the applicat ion.  In other words, I 'm looking for a

16 comparison between what you represent as the Mountain Sewer

17 request in your table and what is present in the applicat ion

18 itself ,  since the numbers don't  exactly t ie. I  think you bundled

19 them together dif ferent ways.  And so would you help me with

20 that as well?

21   THE WITNESS:  Sure.  I 'm looking at page .4 of  the

22 init ial rate case request.  You see the "Fixed System Fees" of

23 12.14 and 12.26?  Those equate to the monthly system

24 expenses of  the 10.25 and the $15.  And add those two together

25 and their columns, that 's what the standby fee of  $24.40 is, and
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1 that 's what the standby fee of  25.25 is under the Division's

2 recommendation.  I  have other numbers and--on page .32--

3 requested by Mountain Sewer.  And those are the numbers

4 requested in their pref i led test imony, I  bel ieve.  So those are

5 more updated numbers than the original requested numbers, i f

6 you fol low.

7   THE HEARING OFFICER:  I  bel ieve I do.

8   Is i t  your understanding that these were presented

9 as requested rates or as indicative of  the actual costs that the

10 company's experiencing?  And if  you can help me clari fy this.

11   THE WITNESS:  Yes.  I  bel ieve these were

12 calculated based on the costs that they knew at the t ime. You

13 know, a lot of  the legal fees changed, as I  explained.  Other

14 expenses came up.  Some things were disal lowed, some things

15 were taken out of  the special assessment and added into the

16 rate base.  And that 's ref lect ive of  al l  the changes here.

17   And I bel ieve on their original rate case request,

18 the f inancial data that--where they got their rates f rom is in

19 Exhibit  G.  And those should t ie forward to this.  I  have it  here. 

20 Their Exhibit  G is t i t led, "Accounting and Financial Information."

21   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Right.

22   THE WITNESS:  And part of  the issue may be--I

23 know that the original attorney, Bryan Bryner, tr ied to pattern

24 that exactly af ter the previous rate case that he worked on.  And

25 some of  the def init ions may or may not have applied
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1 specif ical ly.

2   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Let 's be of f  the record a

3 moment. 

4         (A discussion was held of f  the record.)

5   THE HEARING OFFICER:  We'l l  go on the record.

6   So Mr. Long, as I understand your presentat ion at

7 pages 32 and 33, what you have represented here is the

8 applicant's current request, rate request, and that request

9 evolved over the rate case process.  In other words, the rate--

10 the requested rates changed after the init ial applicat ion.

11   THE WITNESS:  That 's correct.   And this

12 represents the requested amount by Mountain Sewer on their

13 pref i led test imony, which was the most recent request that we

14 had on record for them.

15   THE HEARING OFFICER:  The July test imony, I

16 believe.

17   THE WITNESS:  I  believe i t  was.

18   THE HEARING OFFICER:  For the record, Exhibits

19 1, 2, and 3 were received today.

20   THE WITNESS:  Yes.

21   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Thank you for

22 that help.

23   THE WITNESS:  Sure.

24   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Those are al l  my

25 questions.
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1   Mr. Long, anything further that you would l ike to

2 say in response to the questions I 've asked you or in regard to

3 any other i tem or element of  this case?

4   THE WITNESS:  I  can't  real ly think of anything.

5   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Anything more f rom

6 counsel before we adjourn?

7   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  Nothing more f rom the

8 applicant.

9   MS. SCHMID:  Nor for the Division.

10   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  And, Mr. Long,

11 we do appreciate your ef forts to provide a very thorough

12 examination--

13   THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

14   THE HEARING OFFICER: --of  the applicat ion and

15 to address the other two dockets associated with i t  in a very

16 helpful way.

17   THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

18   THE HEARING OFFICER:  I f  there's nothing further,

19 then we'l l  be adjourned.

20   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  Thank you.

21   MS. SCHMID:  Thank you.

22   THE HEARING OFFICER:  The Commission wil l

23 issue a writ ten order in due course.

24   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  And that wil l  address al l  three

25 of the–
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1   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Correct.

2   MR. CRAIG SMITH:  Okay.

3   THE HEARING OFFICER:  Now we'l l  be adjourned. 

4         (The hearing adjourned at 10:42 a.m.)
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